
Questions and Answers

Medium-Duty/Heavy-Duty Advanced Vehicle Demonstration

PON-14-605

The answers provided are based on the Energy Commission’s understanding of what a question asks. It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding, by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements in Section II. The Energy Commission cannot at this time give advice as to whether or not your particular project is eligible for funding, because all details are not known.

Administrative

Q1
Can a written biography be used instead of a resume? Would the California Energy Commission (CEC) prefer a condensed resume?  Does the CEC want education included?

A1
The solicitation does not specify a mandatory format for resumes. Applications must include current resumes detailing relevant experience of each key team member. Resumes are limited to one page each. Applicants should provide sufficient information on the key team members to assist in the evaluation and scoring of proposed projects. 

Q2
How should an applicant address proprietary information that is confidential?  Should the applicant speak in general terms about technology without going into specifics?

A2
All information within an application becomes a public record once a Notice of Proposed Awards is published.  Applicants must provide sufficient information to allow the scorers to evaluate the proposed project with the published scoring criteria. However, applicants must independently evaluate the risks and rewards associated with including proprietary information in an application.

Q3
Should Letters of Support/Commitment be addressed to the applicant or to the Energy Commission?

A3
Letters of support and letters of commitment are limited to one page maximum and can be addressed to either the applicant or the Energy Commission.

Q4
Is the Data Collection and Analysis Task noted in the solicitation’s Scope of Work a mandatory task?  Should the language in this task remain unchanged?  Should it be left last?

A4
The Data Collection and Analysis task is mandatory. The existing language should be left as-is, but the applicant may include additional data collection requirements by adding additional language to the task. The Data Collection and Analysis Task will be the last Technical Task in the Scope of Work.

Q5
What date should be used for completing "Task 1.1 Attend Kick-Off Meeting" found in Attachment 2 Scope of Work?  

A5
The applicant may propose a date for the kick-off meeting that is consistent with their proposed project schedule. The Commission Agreement Manager (CAM) will work with the awardee to determine the kick-off meeting date when an agreement is being developed. 

Q6
What dates should be inserted for Critical Project Reviews (CPR)?  Should an applicant identify a project start of July 2015?

A6
The applicant may propose CPR dates appropriate for their proposed project schedule. The CAM will work with the awardee to determine the final CPR dates when an agreement is developed.

Q7
Are there priority points for scoring small businesses, micro businesses, or disabled veteran business enterprise?

A7
No.

Q8
Should applications be prepared at a high level or at a detailed level?

A8
Applications should: 1) provide a level of detail sufficient for scorers to understand the proposed project; 2) allow scorers to adequately evaluate the project against all screening and scoring criteria in the solicitation; and 3) provide all of the information required in the solicitation. 

Q9
The Energy Commission should consider electronic submission of grants.

A9
The Energy Commission is currently exploring the possibility of allowing electronic application submittals. However, this solicitation requires applicants to submit hard copies of applications in accordance with the solicitation’s requirements. (See Application Manual Section III.C.)

Q10
Do applicants need to submit a letter from the lead agency that demonstrates compliance with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)?

A10
The solicitation requires applicants to submit documentation that the applicant has contacted the local lead agency, if one exists, for the purposes of complying with CEQA. However, documentation of full CEQA compliance is not required at the time of application. Note that the solicitation evaluates the degree to which a proposed project has obtained CEQA compliance. (See Technical Screening Criteria #6, Attachment 7, and Section III.F.11 of the Application Manual.) Therefore, applications documenting (through letters or other documentation) CEQA compliance or progress towards obtaining CEQA compliance will be rewarded by scorers in accordance with the published scoring criteria.

Q11
Is it allowable for a transit agency project partner to continue operation (at their own expense) of assets purchased with grant monies after the conclusion of the Energy Commission grant?

A11
Equipment purchased with Energy Commission funds requires disposition at the end of the project. Grant recipients may continue to utilize equipment purchased with Energy Commission funds as long as the use is consistent with the intent of the original grant agreement. There are no disposition requirements for equipment solely purchased with match share funding. See Exhibit C, ARFVTP Grant Terms and Conditions, Section 12. 

Budget

Q12
Please consider releasing 10% project retention payment when the demonstration vehicles are built as well as at the time the vehicles are put into demonstration service. Waiting to release the retention payment after project completion puts an onerous financial burden on smaller companies.

A12
It is the Energy Commission's policy to retain 10 percent of any payment request or 10 percent of the total Energy Commission award at the end of the project. After the project is complete the Recipient must submit a completed payment request form requesting release of the retention. The CAM will review the project file and, when satisfied that the terms of the funding Agreement have been fulfilled, will authorize release of the retention.
Q13
Is there a certain amount of funding the CEC is looking for in the budget for such items as meetings for the kick-off, critical project reviews, final report? How about budget for the preparation of monthly progress reports?

A13
No. There is not a specific amount of funding that should be budgeted for these administrative tasks. Applicants must budget funds for their project to ensure the entire proposed scope of work is completely timely and cost-effectively. Please note that the solicitation requires applicants to describe how the proposed project's budget is cost-effective and applications will be evaluated, in part, on the cost-effectiveness of the proposed budget. (See Application Manual, Section IV.D., Scoring Criteria 4.)

Q14
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Funds (GGRF) are eligible sources of match funding through the Air Resources Board (ARB) Air Quality Improvement Program (AQIP) solicitations but are excluded in this solicitation.  We would appreciate collaboration between the Energy Commission and the ARB in this area.

A14
Energy Commission and ARB staff continue to collaborate on California’s advanced vehicle demonstrations within the state. While ARB has not yet released a solicitation in this area using GGRF funds, the Energy Commission expects the solicitations will be complementary, and not duplicative. Since the projects are expected to differ, these funding sources are specifically excluded as eligible match share funding sources under this solicitation.

Q15
Are electric vehicle (EV) charging infrastructure for zero emission (ZE) transit electric buses eligible for funding?

A15
Fueling infrastructure and fuel support costs (including EV) are only eligible as match share expenditures to the extent that the infrastructure and fuel support costs are necessary to support the field demonstration of the vehicle(s) demonstrated in the proposed project.

Q16
How will match share funding above 35% be scored?

A16
Scoring Criteria 4, “Budget,” in the solicitation specifies, among other criteria, that applications will be evaluated on the degree to which "the proposed match share amount exceeds the minimum match share requirement." For example, an application providing 70% match share will score higher than an application providing minimum match share of 35%, assuming everything else in the two applications are equivalent. 

Q17
If an applicant will start a facility and hire people for their proposed project, can part or all of the facility rent, labor cost (without profit) be considered as match share?

A17
All of these costs may be eligible as match share as long as they are reasonable, necessary and allocable to the proposed medium-duty/heavy-duty advanced vehicle demonstration project. As a reminder, applications will be evaluated on, in part, the cost-effectiveness of the proposed project.

Q18
If the specified advanced system or technology to be used for the demonstration project was produced in very low volume, and/or produced by a smaller manufacturer, could a simplified and less expensive means to achieve ARB approval to place the truck into the field in low production volumes be adopted?  The ARB regulatory process can add substantial time and cost to the project. Could expenses associated with meeting such ARB regulations be submitted as part of the allowable expenses, especially expenses related to emissions testing for regulatory purposes?

A18
The potential applicant is encouraged to directly consult with ARB on these issues. Note that only direct expenses incurred during the proposed project are eligible for reimbursement by the Energy Commission or match share. Expenses related to certification protocol are ineligible for reimbursement. See Application Manual Section II.B.

Q19
If a major subcontractor has a subcontractor under them that is also receiving $100,000 in funds, should they be listed as a major subcontractor in the budget worksheet?

A19
Yes.

Q20
An equipment provider has provided a flat-rate bid to install equipment.  Would they be a vendor or major subcontractor? 

A20
Any subcontractor receiving $100,000 or 25% of the Energy Commission award (whichever is less) must be listed as a major subcontractor.

Q21
Can Path-to-Market work be funded in a project?  If so, can Energy Commission funds be used to reimburse this work? 

A21
Path-to-Market work may be eligible as reimbursed or as match share. As a reminder, applications will be evaluated on, in part, the cost-effectiveness of the proposed project.

Q22
Is a score impacted by the ratio of in-kind to cash match share funds?

A22
No.

Q23
Will funding be available at the end of March if the Notice of Proposed Award (NOPA) is released in March 2015?

A23
No. Energy Commission funds are only available for expenditure after the agreement is approved at an Energy Commission business meeting and the grant award is fully executed. Reimbursements are then made in arrears. The earliest expected business meeting approval date is June 2015. However, proposed grant recipients may incur match share expenditures at their own risk after publication of the NOPA. The Energy Commission is not liable for any match share expenditures incurred if an agreement is not approved or is not executed by both the Energy Commission and the funding recipient.

Q24
With respect to an eligible demonstration vehicle, would vehicle acquisition, engine, fuel system, and component costs be eligible for reimbursement? Would the labor to assemble the demonstration vehicle be eligible for reimbursement? If yes, do the costs need to be incurred during the project or would they be eligible if the costs were incurred before an agreement with the Energy Commission is approved or executed?

A24
All of these costs are eligible as reimbursement or match share. Expenses for reimbursement must be incurred during the project agreement term (i.e., after full execution of the grant agreement; any expenses incurred prior to execution will not be reimbursed). Match share expenditures may be incurred after the publication of the NOPA at the proposed recipient’s own risk. The Energy Commission is not liable for any match share expenditures incurred if an agreement is not approved or is not executed by both the Energy Commission and the funding recipient.

Q25
Are any of these activities eligible for reimbursement: 1) daily operating expenses for the end user of the second vehicle demonstration?; 2) vehicle emissions testing?; 3) vehicle fuel economy testing?; 4) vehicle durability testing?; 5) engine test cell certification testing?; or 6) engine test cell durability testing?

A25
These activities are eligible for reimbursement or as match share as long as they are necessary for the successful implementation of the proposed project and adhere to the eligibility requirements of the solicitation (See Application Manual Section II.B, Eligible Projects).

Q26
Are any of these activities eligible for reimbursement: 1) vehicle integration work for second vehicle demonstration?; 2) vehicle integration work to optimize design from second vehicle demonstration through to launching commercial product?; 3) engineering design to optimize engine and engine component design for commercialization?; 4) engine and/or vehicle development to meet certification requirements, not yet required, but required in the time frame of a commercial product (for example, the development work to meet heavy-duty On-Board Diagnostics (OBD) for alternative fuels which comes into effect in 2018?; 5) production facility and process work to accommodate commercialization of new technology?

A26
Activity 1 is eligible for reimbursement or match share. Activities 2, 3, 4, and 5 are outside the scope of this medium-duty/heavy-duty advanced vehicle demonstration solicitation and are therefore ineligible. However, activities 2, 3, 4, and 5 may be eligible under other Energy Commission solicitations. 

Q27
Are operational costs eligible?

A27
Yes. For purposes of this solicitation, operating costs refers to eligible expenses that are related to the demonstration of vehicles.
Q28
Some of the larger fleets in California require manufacturers to be US Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA)/ARB certified. Could part of the funding be used to get the demonstration vehicles certified by USEPA/ARB certified?

A28
No, certification expenses of a proposed project are not eligible for reimbursement.

Eligible Applicant

Q29
Do Applicants need to be from companies based in California?

A29
All applicants must have a business presence in California. Additionally, all corporations, limited liability companies (LLCs) and limited partnerships (LPs) must be registered and be in good standing with the California Secretary of State to enter into an agreement with the Energy Commission. (See Application Manual Section II.A., “Eligible Applicants.”)

Q30
Does the Energy Commission have restrictions regarding project source being foreign or require a California registered entity or partner?

A30
All applicants must have a business presence in California. Additionally, all corporations, limited liability companies (LLCs) and limited partnerships (LPs) must be registered and be in good standing with the California Secretary of State to enter into an agreement with the Energy Commission. (See Application Manual Section II.A., “Eligible Applicants.”) Applicants are encouraged review all eligibility criteria in the published solicitation to determine their eligibility.

Q31
If a large corporation with multiple divisions exists internationally, and one of those divisions is located outside of California, but in the USA has a technology prototype, can they apply for funding through any of its other divisions that do have a presence in California?

A31
All applicants must have a business presence in California. Additionally, all corporations, limited liability companies (LLCs) and limited partnerships (LPs) must be registered and be in good standing with the California Secretary of State to enter into an agreement with the Energy Commission. (See Application Manual Section II.A., “Eligible Applicants.”) Applicants are encouraged review all eligibility criteria in the published solicitation to determine their eligibility.

Q32
Can a public fleet operator be an applicant?

A32
Yes.

Q33
How should businesses that wish to operate a project through a special purpose entity (SPE) apply?  Who is the applicant?  The SPE or the company itself?

A33
The Applicant is the entity that has the authority to enter into a legal agreement with the Energy Commission for the project.

Q34
Do we need an aggregator to be the administrator?

A34
No. There is no requirement for an aggregator in order to be the Applicant or project administrator. The solicitation does not prohibit aggregators from applying to the solicitation or from administering proposed projects. Applicants should structure their proposed projects to maximize project success and cost-effectiveness.

Q35
A company is registered in a different state, but can register with the California Secretary of State and routinely does business with key clients in California.  Would this company qualify for Energy Commission funding or must they be physically present in the State of California?  

A35
See Application Manual Section II.A., “Eligible Applicants.” A potential recipient must be registered with the Secretary of State at the time the agreement is executed. If not currently registered with the California Secretary of State, Applicants are encouraged to contact the Secretary of State’s Office as soon as possible to avoid potential delays in beginning the proposed project(s) (should the application be successful). Applicants are encouraged review all eligibility criteria in the published solicitation to determine their eligibility.

Eligible Project

Q36
Please clarify first and second vehicle prototype as eligible projects.  Does this mean you have to have two prototypes in advance of the project? Is a second working prototype needed to be completed before application is submitted? 

A36
This solicitation requires that an applicant has developed at least one prototype vehicle with the proposed technology. The intent of this solicitation is to assist applicants in developing a second or working prototype that builds upon the first prototype by demonstrating the proposed vehicle/technology in the field. The first prototype vehicle should be completed when the application is submitted. See Addendum #2.

Q37
What is a vehicle field demonstration?

A37
For purposes of this solicitation, demonstration means the placement of technologies in a specified class of vehicles in the field or under operating conditions for that class of vehicle. Field demonstration does not include technology demonstrations in a laboratory or bench setting or via the use of computer models or simulations. 

Q38
If an existing, commercial vehicle has the core technology and systems moved to a new platform, or different class of truck, or a different application/duty-cycle, would it be eligible?  Would the existing vehicle then count as the required first prototype?

A38
Yes, so long as the other requirements for eligible projects are met. However Addendum #2 clarifies scoring preference for innovation or projects that propose new technologies. 

Q39
If first technology demonstration is on one specific size engine, would the second demonstration be eligible if it was the same technology (similar parts) but applied to a different size (displacement) engine?

A39
Yes, however, Addendum #2 clarifies scoring preference for innovation or projects that propose new technologies. 
Q40
Would the same alternative fuel technology applied to a different displacement engine count as a second demonstration? For example if the first demonstration was based on a 9 litre engine in a transit application, would the same technology applied to a 7 litre engine in a delivery truck or school bus be acceptable as a second vehicle demonstration?

A40
Yes. 

Q41
We have working chassis of propulsion systems in a number of existing vehicles. Would it be eligible to demonstrate this working chassis in different vehicle platforms?

A41
Yes, however, Addendum #2 clarifies scoring preference for innovation or projects that propose new technologies. 

Q42
If a successful prototype of a vehicle or vehicle technology has already been demonstrated, can a demonstration vehicle that introduces incremental improvements (same technology, different body types, or same technology, different weight class) be eligible?

A42
Yes.

Q43
If a given technology is proven in a prototype, can a project be eligible if the technology were adapted to different vehicle models or applications without changing the basic technology or any major components?  For example, could a technology demonstrated in one truck manufacturer's drayage truck be demonstrated in another manufacturer's drayage truck, refuse truck, or in a transit bus?

A43
Yes.

Q44
Will incremental improvements to technologies previously demonstrated in a prototype be allowed?  For example, can a proven battery-electric system be modified for the first time use of a higher power motor, different battery chemistry, structures modified to reduce costs, or a hybrid or fuel cell range extender?

A44
Yes.

Q45
Can the eligibility requirement for gross vehicle weight rating (GVWR) be lowered to 10,000 pounds (lbs) from 10,001 lbs? 

A45
The minimum eligibility requirement for GVWR for this solicitation is 10,001 lbs. This requirement reflects the intention of the solicitation, the Alternative and Renewable Fuel and Vehicle Technology Program (ARFVTP), and ARFVTP investment plans to invest in advanced technology vehicle demonstrations for the classes of vehicles noted. 

Q46
Are zero-emission (ZE) plug-in hybrid electric vehicles (PHEV) eligible? 

A46
Yes, assuming they meet all of the requirements of this solicitation.

Q47
Are heavy-duty bus demonstrations using alternative fuel or ZE technologies eligible?

A47
Yes. However, the EV repowering of school buses is ineligible. 

Q48
If a full-electric or battery electric vehicle (BEV) is being modified to a Range-Extender (a REEV - Range Extended Electric Vehicle design) by adding a fuel cell (hydrogen) or other type of range extender, would the original BEV count as the required first prototype?

A48
No, the first prototype must include the same technology type as the proposed demonstration vehicle. Adding a hydrogen or other REEV, to an existing prototype, would constitute a new technology type.

Q49
Does the 40% fuel efficiency improvement apply only to conventional fuels (i.e., gasoline or diesel)?  Would it apply to dedicated natural gas (NG) or hybrid configurations? 

A49
The 40% fuel efficiency improvements referenced in Section II.B. of the Application Manual only refers to the minimum required improved fuel efficiency of conventional gasoline and diesel fueled vehicles.  It does not apply to hybrid configurations, natural gas, or other alternative fuel vehicle types.

Q50
If a project vehicle is a plug-in-, electric- or hydraulic-hybrid, can it use a diesel or gasoline engine without meeting the 40% efficiency improvement requirement?

A50
The 40% fuel efficiency improvement requirement in Section II.B. of the Application Manual is based on the diesel or gasoline engine that provides primary motive power for the vehicle. Hydraulic-hybrid is an efficiency measure for a conventionally fueled propulsion engine and therefore is required to meet, at a minimum, the 40% fuel efficiency improvement requirement when compared to the vehicle performance without it. PHEVs and electric hybrid vehicles are eligible under this solicitation.

Q51
Can a project use a diesel or gasoline engine as a Range Extender (a REEV - Range Extended Electric Vehicle design) without that engine meeting the 40% efficiency improvement requirement?

A51
Yes.

Q52
Can you provide examples where the 20% alternative fuel blends requirement would apply? 

A52
A project or technology may propose to demonstrate ethanol at more than 20% as the alternative fuel blend.

Q53
If a project vehicle is a plug-in-, electric- or hydraulic-hybrid, can it use a diesel or gasoline engine without meeting the 20% alternative fuel blends requirement?

A53
Yes. The 20% alternative fuel blends requirement in Section II.B. of the Application Manual does not apply to the above example.

Q54
Can a project use a diesel or gasoline engine as a range extender (i.e., Range Extended Electric Vehicle design) without that engine meeting the 20% alternative fuel blends requirement?

A54
Yes. The 20% alternative fuel blends requirement in Section II.B. of the Application Manual does not apply to the above example.

Q55
Does an off-road diesel have to use at least 20% biodiesel during the actual demonstration period? 
A55
Yes, or it must adhere to the minimum 40% fuel efficiency requirement depending on the proposed project.

Q56
If a project vehicle is a plug-in-, electric- or hydraulic-hybrid, can it use a natural gas (NG) engine without meeting the 0.02g NOx requirement?

A56
The low NOx requirement in Section II.B. of the Application Manual is only applicable to on-road vehicles and for vehicles that are solely fueled with NG. Applications in this area should discuss how their proposed demonstration technologies will serve markets in the future and the potential of their technologies to meet this low NOx standard.

Q57
Would propane engine technologies with no hybrid configurations also be required to meet the ARB’s Optional Low NOx emissions standard of 0.02 gram NOx?

A57
No. Applicants that propose a propane demonstration project should indicate how the project and technology are innovative and will serve new markets. 

Q58
Is dimethyl ether (DME) considered an eligible alternative fuel?

A58
Yes.

Q59
Is renewable natural gas (RNG) or biomethane considered an eligible alternative fuel?

A59
Yes.

Q60
Must Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) project elements show emissions or efficiency gains or minimum improvement?  Can projected ITS efficiency gains be used in the emissions reduction calculations for a proposed project? 

A60
ITS are eligible as a component of an eligible vehicle demonstration project.  If gasoline or diesel is the primary fuel used for motive propulsion, then the minimum 40% fuel efficiency requirement (see Application Manual Section II.B.) applies. Proposed ITS projects must discuss how fuel efficiencies would be gained and should include emissions reduction information, including all calculations and assumptions.  The Energy Commission plans to further address ITS through upcoming ARFVTP solicitations.

Q61
Can a project that meets all solicitation requirements without any ITS elements then add an additional ITS component during the project and be reimbursed by the Energy Commission? 

A61
No. All expenditures must be consistent with the agreement’s approved scope of work and budget which are based on the application submitted to the Energy Commission.

Q62
Is there a minimum requirement for the number of zero-emission (ZE) demonstration miles?  Would a greater number of ZE demonstration miles improve a project score? 

A62
There is no minimum requirement for demonstration miles. Applications must identify the estimated number of demonstration miles and the amount of fuel displaced. This information will be evaluated and scored in accordance with the published scoring criteria. 

Q63
Is there a maximum number of vehicles allowed in a proposed project? 

A63
There is no maximum number of vehicles for a proposed project. Applicants are encouraged to place as many vehicles into a demonstration as is feasible. While the maximum award is $3.0 million, there is no limit on the maximum amount of match share that can be used on the project.

Q64
How would the following apply to off-road vehicles: "Have a pre-commercial, alternative fuel, engine or propulsion technology or propulsion component technology with zero-emission (ZE) or near-ZE carbon and criteria emissions"?

A64
This requirement applies to off-road vehicles.

Q65
Would a diesel engine with hydraulic-hybrid technologies be eligible?

A65
Yes, as long as the project achieves at least a minimum 40% fuel efficiency improvement if the primary motive fuel source is gasoline or diesel and meets all other solicitation requirements.

Q66
Is off-road construction equipment eligible?

A66
Yes, assuming it meets all the eligibility requirements in the solicitation.

Q67
Would a Boulder Electric VehicleTM truck be eligible for demonstration?

A67
The vehicle could be eligible for demonstration under this solicitation if the project demonstrates a modification such as changes to the truck platform or drivetrain.

Q68
We have a technology for dual fuel diesel engines (diesel plus natural gas or propane).  At light loads, diesel operates close to 100%.  We have a technology that will allow a higher percentage of the second fuel to be used and reduce total fuel costs on the order of 10%.  Is this technology eligible?

A68
Dual-fuel engines utilizing conventional fuels as the primary fuel source must meet the minimum 40% fuel efficiency requirement (see Application Manual Section II.B.).

Q69
Are eligible projects proposed under this solicitation exempt from tampering provisions for the demonstration period or must they undergo the ARB process for exemption first before they become eligible for this solicitation?

A69
Applicants are not required by the Energy Commission to seek exemption from ARB's tampering provision before submitting an application. The applicant should consult with ARB regarding tampering provisions for the proposed project. 

Q70
Eligible technologies include hybrid configurations with alternative fuel as the primary fuel system. Does this mean renewable natural gas (RNG) or biodiesel is the only eligible primary fuel source?

A70
No. The alternative fuel for the hybrid configuration can include RNG and biodiesel as well as other alternative fuels. 

Q71
Are hydraulic hybrid technologies eligible?

A71
Yes, but the project must achieve at least a 40% fuel efficiency improvement (see Application Manual Section II.B.).

Q72
Why is EV repowering of school buses ineligible? Would EV repowering of brand new school bus be eligible?

A72
EV repowering of all schools buses is ineligible under this solicitation. This solicitation specifically excludes EV school bus repowering because ARB has indicated that funding for ZE school buses may become available in the near future.

Q73
If a project intends to commercialize the technology before the end of the project, would that be eligible?  How does the Energy Commission differentiate pre-commercial and commercial?

A73
All commercial activities should be done after the project is completed.  The demonstrated technologies should not be commercially sold during the agreement term. For purposes of this solicitation, pre-commercial means before the commercial sale of the demonstrated product.

Q74
The solicitation states that “Pure natural gas engine technologies with no hybrid configurations are eligible projects but must meet the ARB’s Optional Low NOx Emissions Standard of 0.02 grams NOx emissions per brake horsepower-hour (g/bhp-hr).” Would this requirement apply to proposed demonstration projects before submitting an application?

A74
No, compliance with applicable standards is not required before submitting an application. However, applications in this area should discuss how their proposed demonstration technologies will serve markets in the future and the potential of their technologies to meet applicable low NOx standards.
Q75
The solicitation states projects must “have a pre-commercial, alternative fuel, engine or propulsion technology or propulsion component technology with ZE or near-ZE carbon and criteria emissions.” Does this mean the proposed technology must have the potential to be ZE or near-ZE? Can NG (i.e., Renewable NG, biomethane) or hydrogen based technology be considered near ZE?

A75
Yes, the demonstrated technologies must be ZE or near-ZE or have the potential to be ZE or near-ZE. For purposes of this PON, NG, renewable NG and hydrogen based technologies can be considered near-ZE.
Q76
In regards to plug-in hybrid systems, can the applicant demonstrate percent improvement using A / B testing on a duty cycle that closely matches an actual duty cycle as measured using a telematics system on an existing fleet vehicle?  Can the overall results of testing for the duty cycle include both a driving and stationary work site component that is combined together into a single value if the actual fleet vehicle operates similarly in the field?  

A76
The proposed project must be a field demonstration to be eligible. Bench, laboratory, or computer model or simulation projects that propose to demonstrate technologies are ineligible and may be disqualified in accordance with solicitation requirements.

Q77
In regards to ARB certification, could the proposed technology and/or vocational application be placed into the field and meet the terms of the demonstration project if the technology or propulsion system received an Executive Order exemption to emission control system anti-tampering laws?  

A77
Yes. The application should discuss tampering issues that may be related to the proposed demonstration. 

Q78
Projects with transportation refrigeration units (TRUs) are ineligible. If a project involves a ZEV work class truck that uses cold plate technology that is refrigerated but didn't have internal combustion engine, would that be an eligible project? 

A78
If the TRU is part of field demonstration of a propulsion system technology, it may be eligible. However, a project that proposes to solely demonstrate TRU technology is not eligible. 

Q79
Would a PHEV Class 6 work truck whose primary fuel is electricity but utilizes diesel, gasoline, renewable diesel, or biodiesel as its secondary fuel type be an eligible project? 

A79
Yes. 

Q80
Can Energy Commission monies be used to fund the offloading of a portion of vehicle battery capacity to a shared, road-side, grid-tied battery bank that would be used by multiple buses to buffer high power charging (to avoid demand charges and smooth out power requirements) when the buses charge and to support grid services when the buses are not charging?

A80
The solicitation requires the field demonstration of vehicle technologies to provide their technical or market viability. If this technology were an integral component of a vehicle field demonstration, then this would be eligible.  However, if this were a standalone project that did not involve a field demonstration of a vehicle, it would not be eligible.

Q81
Are vehicle technology components eligible?

A81
Yes, as long as the vehicle technology components meet the solicitation’s eligibility requirements and are demonstrated in the field. 

Q82
Can Energy Commission funding be used to build a series hybrid pilot vehicle in partnership with an out-of-state manufacturer as long as the demonstration occurs in California by California fleets?

A82
The project would be eligible, if solicitation requirements are met. At a minimum, the field demonstration of the vehicle must occur in California. However, the Energy Commission prefers that applicants maximize project activities within California. In part, the scoring criteria provides scoring preferences for projects that create or retain California jobs, benefit economically distressed areas within California, and increase alternative fuel vehicle penetration in California, among other benefits. Proposed projects that do not adequately demonstrate the benefits to California will be score lower in accordance with the published scoring criteria.

Infrastructure

Q83
Is hydrogen fueling infrastructure an eligible cost?

A83
Fueling infrastructure and fuel support costs (including hydrogen) are only eligible as match share expenditures to the extent that the infrastructure and fuel support costs are necessary to support the field demonstration of the vehicle(s) demonstrated in the proposed project. 

Q84
Can Energy Commission funds be used to pay for EV charging infrastructure?

A84
Fueling infrastructure and fuel support costs (including EV) are only eligible as match share expenditures to the extent that the infrastructure and fuel support costs are necessary to support the field demonstration of the vehicle(s) demonstrated in the proposed project.

Q85
Can Energy Commission grant monies be used for the purchase and installation of an inductive EV charging solution (this includes the vehicle-side and road-side charging pads and associated electronics and hardware) necessary for the operation of buses with significantly reduced onboard battery capacity?

A85
Fueling infrastructure and fuel support costs (including EV) are only eligible as match share expenditures to the extent that the infrastructure is necessary to support the field demonstration of the vehicle(s) demonstrated in the proposed project. 

Q86
Can a project include a first prototype for the charging infrastructure (as a match)? We are interested in proposing the use of a higher power charging system and wanted to understand if the Energy Commission was supportive of innovative new technology on the charging side.

A86
Alternative fuel refueling infrastructure (including charging) necessary for the proposed demonstration project is allowable as a match share expense. Eligible projects must focus on the field demonstration of eligible, pre-commercial vehicle technologies. Fueling infrastructure and fuel support costs (including EV) are only eligible as match share expenditures to the extent that the infrastructure is necessary to support the field demonstration of the vehicle(s) demonstrated in the proposed project.

Q87
Please confirm that the EV charging infrastructure is not subject to the commercial activity limitation and may be sold before the completion of the project.

A87
This solicitation targets the field demonstration of eligible, pre-commercial vehicle technologies and associated fueling infrastructure is not subject to the commercial activity limitation contained in Section II.B of the Application Manual. Fueling infrastructure and fuel support costs are only eligible as match share expenditures to the extent that the infrastructure is necessary to support the field demonstration of the vehicle(s) demonstrated in the proposed project.
Q88
What are requirements/applicable standards for fueling eligible fuel cell vehicles with hydrogen?

A88
Any vehicle with a storage capacity larger than 10 kilograms of compressed hydrogen must comply with SAE J2601/2 requirements, and all other applicable laws, ordinances, regulations and standards (LORS). It is incumbent on the applicant to determine applicable LORS and ensure that fueling is compliant. 

Miscellaneous

Q89
Are applicants allowed to submit more than one application? How does that affect the selection of awardees?

A89
Applicants may submit more than one application. However, each application must propose separate and distinct projects. Each application received will be independently evaluated and scored.

Q90
What does "vehicle fleet owner or operator" mean?  Does this mean the existing vehicle manufacturers or transit services?

A90
For purposes of this solicitation, vehicle fleet owner or operator means: a) the business entity or entities or person(s) that own the eligible vehicles that are proposed to be funded and demonstrated through this solicitation; or b) the business entity or entities or person(s) who operate the vehicles that are proposed to be demonstrated. Existing vehicle manufacturers or transit agencies may be eligible as vehicle fleet owners or operators.

Q91
Does the Energy Commission expect the Final Report to have an expansion, confirmation, or more detailed discussion of the Path-to-Market or commercialization strategies?

A91
Yes. (See Attachment 2, Scope of Work, Task 1.5 Final Report.)

Q92
Would the sale of a small number (i.e., under 20) of custom-built vehicles count as a “Commercial Activity"?

A92
Yes. For purposes of this solicitation, commercial activity means the sale of at least one vehicle, product, technology, or system. Projects must demonstrate pre-commercial vehicle technologies. 

Q93
Does “Commercial Activity” mean sales of the technology/vehicle in California, in the country, or in the world?  

A93
For purposes of this solicitation, commercial activity means the sale of at least one vehicle, product, technology, or system. Projects must demonstrate pre-commercial vehicle technologies. 

Q94
Are there any commercialization requirements with respect to timing, volume, financial commitments, etc.?

A94
No. However, the scoring criteria evaluate the path-to-market potential of the proposed project along with the economic and environmental benefits accrued in California from the proposed project. (See Scoring Criteria #2 “Path-to-Market”.) The goal of the solicitation is to conduct field demonstration of pre-commercial vehicle technologies. Once successfully demonstrated, the ultimate goal is to have the vehicle commercially manufactured and sold to increase adoption and use of these advanced vehicle technologies within California.

Q95
With respect to Path-to-Market, some of that information is competitive and would have to be kept confidential. Having that information be public would give competitors an edge.

A95
Confidential materials should not be submitted to the Energy Commission. Any application marked in full or in part as confidential is grounds for rejecting an application. Applicants must balance the need to present accurate information that can be evaluated by the scorers with the applicant's need to preserve confidentiality or proprietary information. All materials submitted to the Energy Commission in response to this solicitation will become a public record. 

Q96
Is there a deadline for launching vehicles into demonstration service so long as the project concludes by 2019?

A96
There is no deadline to launch vehicles into demonstration service. Applicants should place vehicles in service as soon as possible in order to allow for the completion of the demonstration period, data collection and analysis, and preparation of the final report before March 31, 2019.

Q97
How soon can vehicle demonstrations occur after agreement execution?  Is the Energy Commission expecting the full six months demonstration before releasing retention?

A97
The solicitation does not mandate a specific schedule for demonstrations as long as the entire project is complete on or before March 31, 2019. Applicants must provide a comprehensive scope of work and project schedule that allows for successful and cost-effective completion of the proposed project, which will be evaluated as part of the scoring criteria. The Energy Commission expects the entire project will be completed (including data collection and final report) prior to the release of retention. Retention is released when the project is complete, upon receipt of a payment request form from the recipient and review by the CAM for fulfillment of the terms of the agreement. 

Q98
If a proposed demonstration operates in multiple census tracts or zip codes, how will the Disadvantaged Communities (DAC) Bonus Points be applied?

A98
Applicants must include information on applicable census tracts and/or zip codes for the location of the technology provider and the domicile (housing) of the fleet or demonstration vehicle(s). Applicants should also provide census tracts and/or zip code information for the proposed demonstration routes. Energy Commission staff will evaluate this information and apply DAC Bonus Points accordingly. DAC Bonus Points will only be awarded after a minimum score of 70% or 91 of the 130 points is received. 

Q99
Can an applicant submit multiple applications with the same pre-commercial vehicle technology, vehicle platform, and path of commercialization but with different vehicle fleet operators and in different locations to demonstrate the technology?

A99
Yes. Applicants may submit more than one application. However, each application must propose separate and distinct projects. Each application received will be independently evaluated and scored.

Q100
Who owns the demonstrated vehicle at the end of the project?

A100
The Applicant owns the demonstration vehicle at the end of the project. See Exhibit C, ARFVTP Grant Terms and Conditions, Section 12.

Q101
Are projects that can be in demonstration sooner rather than later given more points?  Are projects that are given more cost effective emissions reductions given priority?

A101
The scoring criteria are meant to comprehensively evaluate all aspects of the proposed projects. With everything else being equal, projects that will be successfully demonstrated more quickly will receive more points in accordance with the scoring criteria. With everything else being equal, projects that are more cost-effective and result in a higher benefit-cost score will receive more points in accordance with the scoring criteria. However, all scoring criteria are utilized in the evaluation process. Therefore, a project that is quickly implemented may not score as well in other scoring criteria. Applicants are encouraged to propose projects that will maximize their scores in accordance with the published scoring criteria.

Q102
Can an applicant commercialize or start production of the demonstrated technology before the end of an agreement term or March 31, 2019 if the applicant completes the Scope of Work (SOW) and data collection for project?  As long as all commitments associated with the grant are fulfilled, is there any restriction that precludes starting production prior to March 2019?

A102
An Applicant should align the end date of the agreement with an applicant’s desire to begin commercial production and sales of the demonstrated technology. All activities within the scope of work (including data collection and the final report) must be complete prior to the end term of the agreement.

Q103
The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) has a two-phase application submission process whereby applications submitted by the first deadline would be eligible for 75% funding and applications submitted at a second deadline would be eligible for 100% funding. Applications submitted by the first deadline would also be able eligible to receive the remaining 25% of their funding by a certain date. The Energy Commission should consider a similar approach.

A103
The Energy Commission will consider this methodology for future solicitations. The funding methodology for this solicitation remains unchanged.
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